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commenced in 1864. The Millom and Askham Hsematite Iron Co., Ltd. have
now six furnaces; the works are of the most modern character, and are replete
with every recent invention for the economical production of pig iron.

The Hodbarrow Mining Co., Ltd.—The output from these mines averages about
400,000 tons annually, and the number of hands employed, 1,350. A new outer
sea wall to protect the workings of the mines is now in course of construction.
The area enclosed will be 165 acres and the wall will be exactly the same length
—a mile and a quarter—as the large dam on the River Nile, the undertaking of
the same firm.

As early as the year 1250 the Lords of Millom obtained a charter for holding
a market at Holborn Hill on Wednesdays, and a fair of three days at the festival
of Holy Trinity. When Nicholson and Burn published their history the market
had long been obsolete. Since the rise of Millom it has been revived, and is now
held on Wednesday and Saturday. The Market Hall and Offices of the Local
Board, now the District Council, were erected in 1880 at a cost of about £4,000.
The buildings are in the Renaissance style, with local blue and York white
stone dressings. The Furness and Whitehaven railway passes through the
town, thus placing it in communication with all the industrial centres of the
kingdom.

The Temperance Hall, in Rottington Road, was erected by the late N.
Caine, Esq., of Broughton-in-Furness, and was intended chiefly for the use of the
miners of Hodbarrow and neighbourhood. The Millom Club and Institute is a
brick building, erected in 1882, at a cost of £1,600. The Central Public Hall,
in Main Street, is fitted up with stage and other accessories for the performance
of dramatic pieces. Millam Public Hall, Holborn Hill was erected by a limited
liability company, the foundation stone being laid by Lord Muncaster, September
9th, 1873. The Co-operative Hall, Lapstone Road, is used for concerts, etc.

The Old Parish Church, dedicated to the Holy Trinity, is a venerable
structure, though it has suffered much from the tasteless alterations of modern
times. It consists of chancel, nave, and south aisle, separated by four arches
resting on two circular and one octagonal pillars. An Anglo-Norman doorway
has been walled up, and many of the windows replaced by modern ones. The
piscina is still preserved, also the old font, which is octagonal, and ornamented
with quatre-foils and a shield charged with the arms of Huddleston and a lable.
An ancient mural tablet records the names of several of the same family, and
near it is an altar-tomb, ornamented with Gothic tracery, etc., on which recline
the mutilated effigies of a knight and lady in alabaster. These are supposed to
represent Sir John and Lady Huddleston. There is also an old mutilated effigy
without head and shoulders. The east window is of three lights, a representation
of the Last Supper, and is in memory of Thomas Whinuerah, who was born in
this parish and died in Australia, 1890. The south aisle contains a very fine
window, beautiful both in design and colouring ; also an oval-shaped one, filled
with stained-glass, representing the Annunciation, with the words, “ Ave Maria
Gratia Plena.” In the churchyard is a small remnant of an ancient cross,
also the shaft of a sun-dial.

This church was rectorial until the year 1228, when it became an appendage
of Furness Abbey; Walter de Grey, Archbishop of York, in 1230, appropriated
one moiety for the maintenance of three chaplains in his Cathedral at York.
The living was valued in the King’s Book at £8 5s. 8d., but was certified to the
governors of Queen Anne’s Bounty at the annual value of £26 Is. 8d. About the
year 1721 it was augmented with £256, left by the Rev. John Postlethwaite,
master of St. Paul's School, London, a native of this parish, and £200 obtained
about the same time from Queen Anne’s Bounty, both of which sums were
expended in the purchase of an estate, called Fawcett Bank, near Sedbergh, in
Yorkshire, the rent of which is paid to the vicar. The living is now a vicarage,
in the gift of the Bishop of Carlisle, worth £225 a year, and held by the Rev.
John Irving, M.A. ana J.P. The tithes have been commuted for an annual
payment by the impropriator of £128. A new vicarage house was erected in 1878, 
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about half a mile from the church, on an eminence commanding extensive views
of the surrounding country.

Charities._ Poor Stock.—In 1722 it was certified that there was a poor stock of £30 2s.
belonging to this parish, the donors of which were unknown.

Whicham and Millom Grammar School.—See our account of Whicham parish for this
Charity.

Hr. Atkinson's Charity.—Mr. Atkinson, of Bog House, left the sum of £800, the interest to
be applied for the education of poor children. There are now three scholarships of £10 each,
tenable at any school of higher education. The schools at Millom Rural and Thwaites share in
this bequest.

St. George’s Church.—The great increase in the population, consequent on
the erection of the blast furnaces, rendered more church accommodation neces­
sary. A new church, with a separate ecclesiastical district, was determined
upon, and towards this object the proprietors of the Millom Ironworks contri­
buted the munificent sum of £7,186. The plans were prepared by Messrs. Paley
and Austin, of Lancaster, and the building was completed in 1877. The church
is nearly cruciform in shape, and in the Early English style. The aisle is
separated from the nave by five large bays, resting on octagonal pillars. The
east window is a handsome one of five lights, representing the Crucifixion, with
St. George and St. Michael at either side. The church stands on an eminence
near the Market Square, the gently sloping ground surrounding it being used as
a cemetery. The benefice, styled a vicarage, is worth £300 a year, with parson­
age, and is in the gift of five trustees, and held by the Rev. A. E. Joscelyne,
D.D. The total cost of the church and residence was between £10,000 and
£11,000. The Parish Room, called St. George's Hall, is situated in Lapstone
Road. It is used as a Sunday school, gymnasium, etc.

The Catholic Church, erected in 1888 at a cost of £1,600, is dedicated to Our
Lady and St. James, and is built of the hard flinty stone of the lake district, with
dressings of Furness Abbey stone. It is a plain substantial building, consisting
of sanctuary and nave, with two vestries. The east window is of stained glass,
circular in form, representing the Holy Trinity. The old church, erected in 1868,
has been converted into a school. Adjoining it, and close to the church, is the
presbytery. The Rev. William Perrin is in charge of the mission.

The Primitive Methodist Chapel, Holborn Hill, is a substantial stone
building, erected in 1866 at a cost of £1,100, and presented to the Connexion by
the late Nathaniel Caine, Esq., of Broughton-in-Furness. The Wesleyan Chapel
in Queen Street is a very presentable building, erected in 1872 at a cost of £2,031,
and enlarged in 1876 by the addition of a gallery, and again in 1883 by the
extension of the building at a cost of £623. An infant school has been added.
The chapel will seat about 750 worshippers, and the school, which is well adapted
for Bunday school purposes, will accommodate about 650 scholars. The Baptists
and Bible Christians have places of worship in the town. The Baptist Church,
in Crown Street, is a neat stone building erected in 1884.

To meet the educational requirements of an increasing population, a School
Board was formed in 1876.

The Holborn Hill School consists of three departments, and has accom­
modation for 642. The Lapstone Road School also has three departments, with a

i total accommodation of 1,067. There are also cookery classes in connection with
I the school.

The Catholic School, Millom Road, consists of two departments, mixed and
I infants, with accommodation for 300. It is proposed shortly to erect a new
I infants* school. •
I The Gas Works were established in 1875, and are the property of the
I Urban District Council. There are two holders with a capacity of 80,000
I cubic feet.

Borwick Bails is a natural harbour or creek in this township, navigable for
I vessels of 200 tons, where iron ore is shipped and coal imported. At the extreme
f southern point of the township, called Crab Marsh Point, the Hodbarrow Co.

have erected a pier for the shipment of ore.
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The Millom Co-operative Society was first established as the Holborn Hill
Co-operative Society in 1870, and the name changed to the above in 1887. An
extensive business is carried on in almost every trade.

The Free Library, in Market Square, was established in 1887. The newsroom
is supplied with all the leading papers and magazines. The Police Station was
erected in 1894 at a cost of £5,000. The staff consiets of one inspector, one
sergeant, and four constables. Petty sessions are held fortnightly. The County
Court business is for the present conducted here.

At Iiowscales an ancient British battle axe, 13$ inched long, was dug up in
the year 1824, and several other relics have been found in the same
neighbourhood.

Haveriqg is a village in this township, one mile from Millom, containing
about 2,000 inhabitants. Here is a Chapel-of-Ease to St. George’s Church; it is
a neat structure, erected in 1891 at a cost of £11,000, and dedicated to St. Luke.
The living is a curacy, held by tbe Rev. Watson Stratton. The Primitive
Methodist Chapel was built in 1878, at a cost of £2,000. The chapel of the
Bible Christians is a neat building with Sunday school adjoining. The foundation
stone was laid by Mrs. Jennings in 1873. The Board School consists of two
departments, mixed and infants; the former with an accommodation of 247, the
latter 210. The Assembly Rooms, situated in St. Luke’s Road, are capable of
seating 200 persons.'

Baverigg is fast being transformed from a village into a small town. The
Hodbarrow Mining Co. have erected a large square of concrete houses, which
gives the place quite an air of importance.

Millom Rural.—This township covers an area of 9,249 acres, which are
assessed at £12,707, and contains the following villages, The Bill, The Green,
Kirk Santon, and part of Baverigg; and the hamlets of Hallthwaites, Lady
Hall, Duddon Bridge, and School Ellis. The chapelry of Thwaites is in this
township. Tbe principal landowners are—Lord Lonsdale, William Lewthwaite,
Esq., J.P., D.L., C. J. Myers, Esq., J.P., D.L., T. H. Dobson, Mrs. King,
M. Tronghton, A. Shepherd, Robert Holmes, William Postlethwaite, J. and J.
Lowther, Trustees of W. M. Rawlinson, Trustees of J. D. Newton, Thomas
Barlow-Massicks, Esq., J.P., Hon. Mrs. Cross, George Myers, J. S. Hartley,
H. Brocklebank, Esq., and W. I. Barratt.

Tbe Hill is a village, situated two miles N.E. of Millom, on an eminence
overlooking the estuary of the Duddon. . Here is a small chapel-of-ease to
Holy Trinity, Millom; also a Board School, under the tuition of William James
Rich; and a Wesleyan Chapel. At The Green is a public hall, erected in
1874, by Mr. Myers, of Dunningwoll, for the accommodation of the agricultural
show, which is held here yearly. The village is distant about three miles
from Millom, and three-quarters of a mile from Green Road Station. At Kirk
Santon a new chapel-of-ease to Holy Trinity, Millom, has- been erected. The
land was the gift of William Brockbank, Esq., and the cost of building defrayed
by public subscriptions. The Bank Springs Brewery, owned by J. W. Brockbank
and Co., is a fine building in the form of a tower, containing all modern con­
trivances for expeditious and satisfactory work. The name of the village would
lead us to suppose that a church stood here in ancient times, but beyond tradition
and the name itself there is no conclusive evidence. On the summit of a tumulus
are two stones, standing perpendicularly, about eight feet in height and fifteen
feet apart. Formerly there were several other stones, from which circumstance
it is inferred that the Druids had a temple here. At Hallthwaites, a hamlet three
and a half miles from Millom, is the woollen mill of Messrs. J. B. Moore & Sons,
where blankets, rugs, carpets, etc., are manufactured. Lady Hall, School Ellis,
and Duddon Bridge are other small hamlets in the township. At the latter are
the remains of an old iron furnace, where the ore was smelted when charcoal
was the only fuel used in the process.

Thwaites Chapelry.—The manor of Thwaites was held under the lords of
Millom, in the reign of Edward I., by a family of the local name. In the
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17th century it was conveyed by the Huddlestons to Sir John Lowther, Bart.,
from whom it has descended to the present Earl of Lonsdale. The chapel,
dedicated to St. Anne, is situated near the hamlet, and three miles from the
parish church. The present building was erected in 1853-4, and is a handsome
structure in the Early English style. The original ohapel was replaced by one
built in 1721 by the inhabitants, who endowed it with £200; but showing very
visible symptoms of decay, it was rebuilt in 1807. The present chapel consists of
nave, lofty chancel, aisle, and bell turret containing two bells. A lofty arch
spans the entrance of the chancel, and four perpendicular arches separate the
nave from the aisle. The interior is light and elegant, and beautifully furnished.
The pulpit and font are of Caen stone, and both are ornamented with some
fine carving. The latter is unusually large, and is supported on four columns
of Purbeck marble. The east window is lancet shaped and of three lights, the
centre one containing a representation of the Crucifixion, and the side ones
incidents in the life of Christ. In the chaucel is a handsome marble tablet in
memory of W. and Eleanor Lewthwaite, also several fine stained-glass windows
to the members of the same family. The aisle contains three windows, inserted
to the memory of Agnes Postlethwaite, 1853; Robert Postlethwaite, 1859; and
"William and Agnes Allen, 1872, and 1875. There is also a monument to John
Ormandy, for twenty-four years perpetual curate of the parish, who died in
1846. To commemorate the Jubilee of Queen Victoria, a new two-manual organ
was placed in the chancel by subscription. In 1715 the chapel was certified as
having no endowment, but subsequently received, in addition to the £200
already mentioned, £800 from Queen Anne's Bounty, £100 from a private source,
and a Parliamentary grant of £1,000 in 1825. The living is a perpetual curacy,
worth £135 a year, and in the patronage of five trustees.

Chabities.—Ann Smithson, in 1778, bequeathed £20 to the poor of Thwaites, the interest
thereof to be distributed in bread on the first Sunday after the 13th of February, and the farther
sum of £20, the interest thereof to be paid to the schoolmaster there. These legacies form part
of £400 which was laid out in 1788, in the purchase of land in Millom, for the augmentation of
the curacy. John Wennington gave £30, and Bernard Benson £6 for the use of the poor of this
chapelry; these sums are secured on two tenements in the neighbourhood.

Buckman Brow School is a neat building of the Elizabethan style, erected in
1845 by Miss Frances E. Millers, who also left £2,000 for the instruction of girls
between the ages of five and sixteen, in reading, writing, arithmetic, sewing, and
the Church catechism. Thirty pounds a year and a residence were to be allowed
for a governess. The number and mode of admission of the children are regulated
by the trustees, who, according to the deed of foundation, shall be the ministers
of Thwaites and Broughton-in-Furness, and the owners of the estates of Duddon
Grove, Ulpha, and Broadgate.

Thwaites Board School receives the sum of £16 for the education of 16 boys
belonging to this chapelry. The school belongs to the church, but is under the
management of the Millom School Board. It may be withdrawn any time by
giving three years notice. Duddon Hall, the residence of Harold Brocklebank,
Esq., is delightfully situated on the banks of the river, from which it derives its
name, amidst the most picturesque scenery. At Swinside, in this chapelry, are
the remains of a Druidical circle or temple, known locally as Bunkenkirk.  It
consists of 53 large stones, with several small ones lying amongst them, forming
a circle 84 feet in diameter, the entrance to which is about five feet wide. The
largest of these stones is conical in shape and stands about nine feet high.

MILLOM "URBAN TOWNSHIP.
Magistbates fob the Petty Sessional Division of Millom and Bootle.

Lord Muncaster, Muncaster Castle, Ravenglass; Wm. Postlethwaite, Esq.; John Benn, Esq.;
W. B. Walker, Esq.; Chas. John Myers, Esq.; Rev. John Irving, Wm. Lucas Benn, Esq.;
Wm. Lewthwaite, Esq., D.L.; Thomas Barlow-Masaicke, Esq.: W. I. Barratt, Esq.; T. H.
Coward, Esq.; Cedric Vaughan, Esq.; Richard Grice, Esq.; John Gunson, Esq.; William
Brockbank, Esq.; Alex. Watt, Esq.; W. J. Yarr, Esq.; J. H. M. Ritson, Esq.

Clerk—-J. Webster, solicitor, Whitehaven.
Petty Sessions held on each alternate Saturday here and at Bootle.
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Urban District Council.
Newtown Ward North—James Fawcett, David

Lang, James Waye, H. J. Kirby
Newtown Ward South—W. I. Barratt, John

Crowle, Thomas Rundle, G. Sheldon
Haverigg Ward—James W. Brockbank, T. J. 0.

Fox, W. Waite, Thomas Tresise
Holborn Hill Ward—Samuel Coade, Edwin

Griffin, Geo. Hill, Cedric Vaughan (chairman)
Surveyor and Inspector of Nuisances—Charles

A. Haynes
Gas and Water Manager—Thomas R. Spencer
Medical Officer of Health—P, B. Stoney,

M.R.C.8.
Collector—James Edward Howarth
Treasurer— 0. A. Oglethorpe (Lancaster Bank­

ing Co., Ltd.)
Market Inspector—E. Crayston
Clerk—W. T. Lawrence, solicitor
Registrar of Births and Deaths for Bootle Sub­

District—Henry Frankland Fox, Duke street.
Attendance—Tuesday and Thursday, 5 to 7 ;
Saturday morning, 9 to 10

Relieving Officer—H; F. Fox
Assistant Overseer—J. E. Howarth, Public

Library

Millom School Board.
John Newton, chairman; Captain Coade, vice-

chairman ; W. J. Yarr, John Atkinson, Rev.
A. E. Joscelyne, Rev. W. E. Perrin, David
Lang, Clerk, W. T. Lawrence, solicitor

Placks of Worship.
Church of England (Holy Trinity), Millom Old

Parish Church; Rev. John Irving, M.A.,
vicar; Rev. H. V. Banks, curate. (St.
George's) Rev. A. E. Joscelyne, D.D., vicar;
Rev. Albert Edward Wyatt, curate

Haverigg, see Haverigg Directory

Catholic Church (Our Lady and St. James'),
Queen street; Rev. William E. Perrin

Wesleyan, Queen street; Rev. Josephus Bishop
Primitive Methodist, Holbom Hill; Rev.

William Carr
Bible Christian Methodist, Newton street; Rev.

Jabez Drew
Baptist, Crown street
Salvation Army, Nelson street
Spiritulists, Holborn Hill
Welsh Cdlvinistic Methodists, Temperance hall
Plymouth Brethren, Lonsdale road

Public Halls, etc.
County, Market square
«SL George's (Pariah), Lapstone road
Temperance, Mainsgate road

Public Institutions.
Free Public Library and Newsroom ; Alfred

James Hutchinson, librarian
Hodbarrow Hospital ; Mrs. E." Stephens,

matron; Dr. Stoney, medical officer
Police Station, Jacob Johnstone, inspector ;

John Ratcliffe, sergeant
Volunteers 4th Lancaster L. Company, capt., C.

Sawrey-Cookson; serg.-instruo., Geo. Spencer

• Clubs, etc.
Cricket; F. Lawrence, secretary
Cycling ; Edward Tyack, secretary
Floral and Horticultural Society ; H. D. Shard-

low, secretary
Liberal; Crown street
Mechanics' (I.O.U. of) Lodge, Millom Castle

Hotel; John Hockady, secretary
Mechanics' (Rising Sun Lodge), Plough Hotel;

William Lewthwaite, secretary
Millom Conservative and Unionist; Charles

Peters, secretary, Steel Green
Millom Football (N.U.), Millom Castle Hotel,

headquarters; Joseph Higgins, secretary

Post, Money Order, Telegraph, de. Office, Market square; Seth Slater, postmaster. Deliveries
begin at 7 a.m. and 3-55 p.m. On Sunday to callers only, 8 to 10 a.m. Despatches, to all
parts, 9-10 a.m., 6-40 and 7-45 p.m.; to Barrow and Dalton, 3-20 p.m. Sunday despatch at
6-30 p.m. Telegraph Office open on Sundays, 8 to 10 a.m.

Wall Box—-Holbom Hill cleared at 9 aan., 3 p.m., and 7-5 p.m. (except Sunday.)
„ —Queen street cleared at 9 a.m., 8 p.m., and 7-15 p.m. (except Sunday.)
„ —Borwiok Rails cleared at 8 a.m. and 4-45 p.m. (except Sunday.)
„ —Lapstone road Schools cleared at 8-50 ajn. and 7-10 p.m. (except Sunday.)
„ —Steel Green cleared at 8-15 a.m. and 7 p.m. (except Sunday.)

Letters via Camforth.
Anderson Wells, shipwright, Bay view
Andrews John Thomas, yeast merchant, 15

Albert street
Arrowsmith Claude E., photographer, Lap­

stone road
Auction Mart Co. Ltd.; alternate Tues.; W.

Coward, auctioneer; M. J. A. Dickinson, sec.
Ballen Charles, chimney sweep, Egremont st
Banks Rev. H. V., curate, Finch- street
Barratt Wm. Isaac, managing director Hod­

barrow Co.; h. Kepplewray, Brouqhton-in-
Furness

Bell Mrs. Mary A., Cambridge street
Bonnetts John, master mariner, 46 Lapstono rd
Bishop Bev. Josephus (Wealyn), 76 Lapstone rd
Blake Mrs. Ann, 82 Lapstone road

Eowerbank Mrs. Jane, 4 Kingsland road
Boyle James, engineer, 18 Kingsland road
Bradley Thomas, 25 Lapstone road
Bradley Wm., builder & contractor, Bay view
Brocklebank George Henry, music dealer,

38 Newton street
Brooks Edward Albert, clerk, 6 Finch street
Buick Henry, 78 Lapstone road
Cain Jas. Jackson, secretary Co-op. Soo., Ltd
Campbell Andrew, chimney sweep, 2 Lap­

stone road
Carr Rev. William (Primitive Methodist), 32

Wellington street
Castle Henry, Newton villas
Catterall John, plasterer, 85 Wellington street
Clark James, Salthouso cottage
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Clarke Henry, coachman, Steel Green
Coade Sami., underground manager, Steel Green
Coram Mrs. Sarah, Newton villas
Coward Alfred, auctioneer and valuer,

Lonsdale house, Duke street
Coward Mrs. Nancy, Church Walk
Crellin George Noble, Steel Green
Crook Mr. Walter, Lancashire house
Crowle John, deputy, 51, Main agate road
Daniel John, milk dealer, 46 Newton street
Davis William James, Newton villas
Denny William J., schoolmaster, Newton villas
Dixon Mrs. Mary, Bay view
Dobson William Henry, engine driver, 39 Mains*

gate road
Dodd Mrs. Margaret, 9 Horn hill
Drew Rev. Jabez (Bible Christians), 12 Kings­

land rood
Durham Hy., painter (j.), 14 Horn hill
Edwards George, foreman, 9 Horn hill
Fairclough James, master mariner, 64 Lap­
stone road
Fawcett Joseph, 5 Mainsgate road
Fearon Hy., senr., 20 Moor terrace
Floyd John, grocer, draper, shoemaker

and dogger, glass and china dealer, baker and
confectioner; 48, 50, and 52, Wellington
street; warehouse—Nelson street; and at
Holborn Hill, Haverigg, and Bootle

Forrest John William, 15 Hom hill
Forrest Mrtj. Mary Ellen, Forrest villa
Fox Hy. Frankland, registrar, etc., Duke street
Gas and Waterworks—Thos. R. Spencer, mngr
Gen die Mrs. Mary, 4 Horn hill
Gendle Mrs. Mary Ann, 60 Lapstone road
Gill Richard, milk dealer, 19 Mainsgate road
Glaister Robert Wm., M.R.C.V.S., 8 Hom hill
Graham John, secretary, Iron works
Griffin Edwin, draper, Bay view
Hall J. T., music dealer, Market square
Hall John, 1 Victoria street
Ham Mrs. Elizabeth, 21 Mainsgate road
Haynes Charles Allen, surveyor, 16 Kingsland rd
Hill George, general and monumental

mason, 13 Hom hill
Hodbarrow Mining Co.t Ltd,; W. I. Barratt

and Cedric Vaughan, joint mng. directors;
Robert Johnson, secretary

Holborn Hill Tontine Society ; held at Plough
Inn ; John Hall, secretary

Holme James Edward, pawnbroker, 20
Katherine street

Holmes Joseph, harbour master
Housby John, 17 Kingsland road
Howarth Jas. E., assistant overseer, Bay view
Howarth Mrs. Mary, 60 Lapstone road
Howarth Mrs. Margaret Benson, 54Lapstone rd
Hudson Alfred Rhodes, pilot, 10 Kingsland rd
Hudson Miss Clara, teacher of dress cutting,

11 Newton street
Hus tin James, 105 Holbom hill
Hutchinson Thomas, clerk, Rock house
Irving Rev. John, M.A. (Queen’s College, Oxon),

and J.P., The Vicarage
Jackson Benjamin, 10 Hom hill
Jackson Miss Elizabeth, Bay view
Jackson William, 8 Cambridge street
James James, pattern maker, 41 Mai negate rd
James Thomas, 88 Newton street
Johnson Mr. James, guardian, East view
Johnson Robert, secretary (Hodbarrow Co.),

Steel Green
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Johnstone Jacob, police inspector
Jones Evan, pilot, 23 Mainsgate road
Joscelyne Rev. Albert Ernest, D.D., St. George’s

Vicarage
Kyle John Henry, assistant superintendent

(Pearl), 12 Horn hill
Kirby Mrs. Matilda, 22 Holborn hill
Kitchen William Henry, tailor, and clerk to

Holy Trinity Church, Hall Bank
Knipe Edward Tyson, cycle repairer, 135

Holbom hill
Long Mrs. Jane, 17 Hom Hill
Mair George J., commercial manager, Iron­

works ; h. Salthouse road
McGowan John, merchant, Fair view
McIntyre Colin, pilot, 7 Mainsgate road
McNally Bernard, marine store dealer and bus

proprietor, 41 Lord street
Metcalf William, foreman joiner, and captain,

fire brigade, 24 Lapstone road
Millar William, school attendance officer,

15 Cambridge street
Millam Co-operative Society, Lid.; James

Jackson Cain, secretary
Mills John, Longlands
Morgan John, station master
Moyle John Henry, 13 Kingsland road
Moylen Isaac Michael, 11 Hom Hill
Mudge George, music teacher, 9 Cambridge st
Nankivell Samuel, milk dealer, 119 Albert st
Nelson Absolem, milk dealer, 25 Wellington st
Nicholson Mrs. Anne, 14 Kingsland road
Norsworthy John Henry, teacher of music, 33

Mainsgate road
Northcote Henry, 4a King street
Nute William, milk dealer, 68 Lapstone road
O’Mara Michael, 21 Kingsland road
Onnandy John, bank manager, Bay view
Park John, 19 Kingsland road
Perrin Rev. Wm. E. (Catholic), The Presbytery
Peter Mrs. Emma, Steel Green
Pickering Charles (agent to Singers’), 17 Lap­

stone road
Plummer John, 12 Hom Hill
Quiggin Thomas, sugar boiler, Lonsdale road
Ratcliffe John, police sergeant
Rich Joseph, underground manager, Steel

Green villa
Rich Mrs., Steel Green
Rich Wm., underground manager, Steel Green
Richardson James, Newton villas
Robinson William, 8 Victoria street
Rodda Mrs. Eliza, Grove road
Rodgers William Jackson, secretary to Carlisle

Co-operative Benefit Building Society, 137
Newton street

Rosoigh Thomas James, School house
Rundle Thomas, 70 Lapstone road
Sablin Axel, general supt., Iron works
Sampson Mark, deputy, 45 Mainsgate road
Satterthwaite John, 8 Kingsland road
Sharp James, schoolmaster, 21 Kingsland road
Sheldon George E., auctioneer and valuer, and

china dealer, 59 and 61 Queen street
Sherwin Joseph, cashier, 57 Mainsgate road
Skelhom Miss, artist, Holbom Hill
Smith Mr. Thomas, retired builder and property

owner, 3 Bay view
Spencer George, sergt.-instructor of volunteers,

40 Horn hill
Storey Kendall, dentist, 16 Horn hill
Strike Wm., underground manager, Steel Green
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Tamblin John, storekeeper, Hodbarrow
Towers James Henry, deputy, 31 Mainsgate

road
Troughton Miss Hannah, 15 Kingsland road
Truemans William, 26 Duke street
Turner Frank, dancing master, 49 Mainsgate rd
Tyacke Mrs, Ann, 2 Hom hill
Tyacke Edward, clerk, 6 Hom hill
Tyson Mrs. Jane Ann, Newton villas
Tyson William, 62 Lapstone road
Vaughan Cedric, Esq., J.P. and 0.0., managing

director, Hodbarrow Co., Loyfiold
Ward Mrs. Agnes, 48 Lapstone road
Ward John William, foreman, Iron works

Warren Mrs, Elizabeth, Temperance Hotel, 10
St. George’s terrace

Watson Richard, engine driver, Hodbarrow
Watts Joseph, contractor, Fell view
Waye Mrs. Mary Grace, 72 Lapstone road
Wilcock Mrs. Hannah, 7 Cambridge street
Williams James, photo agent, 22 Crown street
Williams William, 55 Mainsgate road
Wood Thomas, cycle builder, Nelson street
Wyatt Rev. Albert E., curate, 72 Lapstone rd
Yarr William John, engineer, iron and brass

founder, and black and white smith; h.
Lap stone road

Youren Mrs. Mary, 3 Horn hill

TRADES AND PROFESSIONS.
Academies and Schools.
Catholic (Our Lady and St.

James), Millom rd(mixed)
Miss Margaret Doherty;
(infants’) Miss Mgt. Millar

Holborn Hill Board; (boys’)
R. A. Mitchell; W. J.
Denny, assistant ; (girls’)
Miss L. Park, head mistres;
(infants’) Miss Isabella Dur­
ham ; Miss F. Atkinson,
assistant

Lapstone Road Board ; (boys’)
Henry D. Bhardlow; (girls’)
Miss M. Blake ; (infants’)
Miss M. H. Atkinson ;
(cookery) Miss F. Blake

Banks.
Bank of Liverpool, L&Z. (Wake­

field, Crewdson, & Co.);
branch, St George’s terrace,
John Ormandy, manager

Cumberland Union Banking
Co., Ltd.; W. T. Lawrence,
manager

Lancaster Banking Co.,Ltd.;
Chas. Alf. Oglethorpe, mngr

Beer Retailers.
Clark William, Red Lion,

Holbom Hill
Fawcett Joseph, Crown Hotel,

Lord street
Hodgson Mrs. Alice, 81 Hol-

born Hill
Jackson Reuben, Furness Inn,

Wellington street
Moore Robert (off and wines),

1 Egremont street
Rigg Mrs. Elizabeth, Brown

Dog, Wellington street
Woodbum Thomas, Farmers*

Arms, Rottington road

Blacksmiths.
Bradley William, Salthouse rd
Dixon Robert, Holbom Hill

Booksellers, Printers,
and Stationers.

Atkinson Wm., Market square
Cook Daniel, 85 Queen street

Dickinson Percy Charles, 3
Holbom Hill

Farrington John, 55 Holborn
Hill

Skeate Joseph Harris, 27
Wellington street

Sprague Richard, Lapstone rd

Boot and Shoe Makers
and Dealers.

Beesley Henry William, 43
Newton street

Bowness John, 17 and 19
Newton street

Bowness Jph., 73 Queen street
Darvell Wm., Market square
Floyd John, 48 Wellington st
Gray John & Co., 35 Lapstone

road; W. B. Beattie, mgr.
Johnson Alfred, 31 Market st
Knipe Wm, 15 Holbom hill
Lamb James, 63 Queen street
Leeds (The) Boot Manufac­

turing Co., 53 Queen street;
George Burns, manager

Mitchell James, 64 Newton st
Riley David Sawrey, 121 Hol­

born hill
Taylor William, 47 Queen st
Walker Albert, 34 Lapstone rd
Webb Hy., S3 Wellington st

Builders.
Bradley R. G. W., Castle view
Bradley Wm. (and brick and

tile manfr.), Salthouse road
Hill Georgre, 13 Horn hill
Maokereth David, 27 Crown st
Richardson William, 58 Lap­

stone road
Tomlinson William,

Lapstone road ; h. 24 Kath­
erine street

Butchers.
Atkinson Rbt. R., 44 Newton st
Jones Price, 7 Holbom hill
Kitohin Henry, Wellington st.
Sharpe Percy, 62 Holbom hill
Stott & Sohiefler, Queen st
Shuttleworth Jpb., 60 Albert st
Thompson W. H.,50Newton st
Troughton John, 1 Newton st

Tyson James, 45 Wellington st
Tyson Wm., 59 Wellington st
Waye James, 27 Queen street
Wilson Jon., 89 Holborn hill
Wood Samuel, 32 Queen street

Chemists.
Dixon Fdk. S., 28 Lapstone rd
Roberts James Lyddon,

Market square
Short John (and wine and

spirit merchant), 35 New­
ton street

Coal Dealers.
Armstrong Jas., 18 Newton st
Bell George, Wellington st
Bradley R. G. W., Castle view
Co-operative Society, Ltd.
Dennis R., Queen street
Grafton Wm., 133 Newton st
Kenny T., John street
Reid Bros., 86 Newton street
Stranix Jas., Albert street

Confectioners.
Bills Mrs. Ann, 37 Queen st
Bond Mrs. Sarah, 69 Queen st
Danson Miss Annie, 18 St.

George’s terrace
Deacon Mrs. Jane, Lapstone rd
Floyd John, 48 Wellington st
Greenwood Joseph, Holborn

hill, and 16 St. George’s ter
Jones Miss Emma, 63 Wel­

lington street
Mason Mrs. Rachel, 89 Market

street
Pryor M. P., 21 Wellington st
Quiggin Thomas, Lonsdale rd

Drapers, &c.
Atkinson Jno., 49 Wellington st
Beesley Henry Wm., 21-3-5

Newton street
Benn Isaac & Son (Joseph),

Wellington street
Birkett Wilson, 42 Market st
Bradley —, 81 Wellington st
Crump William, Market sq
Dixon Miss Elis., 11 Holborn

hill
Floyd John, 48, 50, 52 Wel­

lington street
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Forsyth William and Annie,
44 Queen street

Friend Mrs. Sarah, 31-3
Newton street

Gregson Peter, 13 St. George’s
terrace

Griffin Edwin, Market square
Pearce William, 55 Crown st-
Richards Thomas, 16 St.

George’s terrace
Slater Seth, Market square
White Henry, 2 Wellington st
Wilson Harry, 39 Newton st
Win skill James, Wellington st

Engineer, Iron & Brass
Founder, &c.

Yarr William John

Farmers.
Atkinson John, Below Beck
Bar tie Sami. Johnson, Old Moor
Blair Isc. (cowkpr), Castle view
Dowbiggin Wm., New hall
Fearon Hy., jun., Moor farm
Harker John, Salthouse
Newby Rd., High Lowscales
Park Mrs. Agnes (owner),

Cross house
Postlethwaite Geo., Low house
Watson Wm. (and overseer),

Millom castle

Greengrocers.
Bennett Hy., 53 Holborn hill
Docker Anthony, 64 Queen st
Docker Robt. Fell, 62 Queen st
Forsyth Thos. W., 30 Lap­

stone road
Harris Thos., 57 Wellington st
Johnson Mrs. Caroline, 31

Market street
Mellen Alfred, 71 Queen street
Pattinson Sami., 26 Queen st
Phillips Wm., 58 Newton st
Southern Christopher, 37

Newton street
Stephens Rd., 47 Wellington st

Grocers.
Burton Joseph & Sons, 27

Newton street
Clark Rd., 106 Wellington st
Cole Thomas, 60 Queen street
Co-operative Society; J. J.

Cain, secretary
Fell James, 30 Queen street
Floyd John, 48, 50, and

52 Wellington street, and
at Holborn hill, Haverigg,
and,Boo tie

Flynn David, 15 Wellington st
Harling Thos., 37 Market st
Harvey Philip, 36 Newton st
Johnson John, 54 Newton st
Mason Thos., 50-2 Quoen st
Mills John and Son, Market sq
National Tea Co., 32 Lapstone

road
Reid Bros., 86 Newton street
Singleton Jacob, 9 Holbom hill

Spry George, 26 Wellington st
Teasdale Ed., 117 Holborn hill
Veale Thos., 58 Queen street
Walmsley Christopher, 33

Lapstone road

Hairdressers.
Beardsworth Rd. Albert, 49

Queen street
Bennetts John T., 17 St.

George’s terrace
Burns Thomas, 15 Newton st
Castle Rd. Hy., 2 Holbornhill
Murning Wm.,70 Wellington st
Norman Hy. Geo., Market sq

Hotels, Inns, & Taverns
Devonshire Hotel, Devonshire

road; Joseph Pugh
Ironworks Hotel, Duddon st;

Daniel Morgan
Millom Castle Hotel,

Holborn hill, head-quarters
Millom Football Club,
Cycling Club, and Cricket
Club; James Fawcett

Peel Hotel, Bodford street; R.
Bowness

Plough Hotel, Holborn hill;
James Mackereth

Queen's Hotel, Holborn hill;
John Crellin

Royal Hotel, Queen st;
John Fawcett

Ship Hotel, Albert street: John
Lister

Ship Inn, Holborn hill;
Samuel Mackereth

Station Hotel (and posting);
Charles William Dove

West County Hotel,
Market square (family and
commercial); E.Brown, supt

Insurance Offices and
Agents.

Alliance; J. R. Hall, 37 Wei-
lington street

General and Accident; W. T.
Lawrence

London, Edinburgh, and Glas­
gow ; D. Morgan

National and Provincial Plate
Glass; W. T. Lawrence

Northern Assurance Co,; W.
T. Lawrence

Norwich Union Accident; M.
J. A. Dickinson, 9 St.
George’s terrace

Pearl; J. H. Kyle, 12 Hom
Hill;' A. M. Breakwell, 29
Market street

Thomp-
street;
Mains-

gato road ; Samuel Veale, 58
Queen street

Refuge; Rt. Franois Howson,
126 Albert street

Royal; M. J. A. Dickinson, 9
St. George's terrace

Ironmongers.
Dixon Bros. (W. and E., and

W. Tyson); 38, 40,42 Lap­
stone road

Holmes Thos., 24 Wellington st
Mills John & Son (Frederick),

Market square

Iron Manufacturers.
Millam and Askham Ramatite

Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.;
John Graham, secretary;
Axel Sahlin, general supt.

Iron Ore Mines Pro­
prietors.

Hodbarroio Mining Co., Ltd.;
W. I. Barratt, C. Vaughan,
joint managing directors;
Robert Johnson, secretary

Millom and Askham Hamatite
Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.;
John Graham, secretary;
George J. Mair, commercial
manager

Joiners.
Birkbeck A., Holbom Hill
Bradley William, Salthouse
Mackereth David, 27 Crown st
Richardson W., 58 Lapstone rd
Tomlinson William,

Lapstone road

Milliners and Dress­
makers.

Bamber Miss, 33 Wellington st
Benn Isaac & Son, Wellington

street
Bowes The Misses, 103 Hol­

born hill
Bradley Miss Sarah, 25 Lap­

stone road
Cornthwaite Miss Edith, 84

Newton street
Friend Mrs. Sarah, 31-33 New­

ton street
Griffin Edwin, Market square
Mossop Miss Kate, 8 Moor rd
Newby Miss Tamar (scientific),

28 Duke street
Pelleymounter Miss Emma,

17 Lapstone road
Pickering Miss Margaret, 17

Lapstone road
Richards Thomas, 16 St.

George’s terrace
Withers Miss Jane, 29 Well­

ington street

Mineral Water Manu­
facturers.

Carter Lindsey, 55 Wellington
street

Fawcett Marmaduke, Salt­
house road

Hodgson Thomas, 125
Holborn hill, & at Diversion

I Sharpe Bros., 62 Holbom hill

Prudential; Sam.

Thomas Tresise, 47
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Newspapers.
iliUom Gazette (Friday) ;

Percy 0. Dickinson, propr.
IfiUom News (Sat.); office:

Market square; S. S. Lord,
Ltd., proprietors, Hindpool
road, Barrow

Pawnbrokers.
Elias Mrs. Eliz., 14,16 King st
O’Donoghue Matthias, 23

Queen street

Photographers.
Hargreaves Jas., Lapstone rd
Hutchinson George Thomas,

Book house

Plumbers, Painters, &c.
Bradley William, Salthouse rd
Mandall Wm., 54-6 Queen st
Taylor Arnold James, 1 Lan­

cashire road
Thompson George William,

48 Newton street

Saddler, &o.
Cartwright William T. H., 7

St. George's terrace

Shipbuilders, &c.
Anderson William
Jones Hugh and Micaiah

(Duddon Shipbuilding Co.)

Shopkeepers.
Bowshot Mrs. Ann, 37 Lons­

dale road
Brocklebank John 49 Albert st
Conelley Mrs. E., 34 Queen st
Cornthwaite Mrs. Eliza, 84

Newton street
Davey Mrs. Annie, 88 Lap­

stone road
Dennis Mrs. S., 28 Lonsdale rd
Harris Mrs. Esther, 10 Well­

ington street
Horzil William, 34 Lonsdale rd
Jones George, 1 Surrey street
Maddem Mrs. Eliza, 35 Lord st
Mulholland Mich., 19 King st
Polglase Mrs. Margaret, 1

School terrace
Roberts William, 22 Newton

street
Rodgers Rd., 90 Newton st
Shelton John, 93 Holborn hill
Tancock Francis, 40 Bay view
Wilson Mrs. Mary, 3 Newton

street
Woodruff Wm., 62 Queen st

Solicitors.
Butler John B., Cambridge st
Butler Thomas, Cambridge st
Butler Wilson, Cambridge st
Dickinson Matthew Jackson, 9

St. George’s terrace
Hall Jas. R., 37 Wellington st
Lawrence Wm. T., Market sq
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Surgeons.
Anderson J. J., 84 Lapstone rd
Dunn Wm. Allison, Lapstone

road
Hudson J. W., Old Bank house
Stoney Percy Butler, Bay view

Tailors.
Beesley Hy. Wm., 75 Queen st
Bonn Isaac & Son, Wellington

street
Gregson Peter, 18 St. George’s

terrace
Moore Hy., 5 St. George's tec

Tobacconists.
Kitchin Rd., 17 Wellington st
Lamb Thomas, 13 Newton st •
Norman Hy. Geo., Market sq
Ranger Alfred (and herb porter

manufacturer), 56 Newton st
Rome Thomas, 51 Queen st
Showard Joseph, 11 and 12 St.

George's terrace
Watchmakers and

Jewellers.
Coady Wm., 8 Newton street
Dowell Thomas, 36 Lap­

stone road
Hall William, 13 Wellington st
She ward Joseph, 11

and 12 St. George's terrace
Sheward Wm. T., 24 Newton st


